

November 29, 2021 Minutes – Special Meeting of the Board of Commissioners

#### 5:00 CALL TO ORDER

The Board of Commissioners met at 5:00 PM for a Special Meeting in the Historic Courthouse Board Meeting Room, 153 Courthouse Rd, Currituck, North Carolina, for the following purposes:

- · Consideration of Lease Agreement with the North Carolina Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services for Forest Service Office.
- · Discussion of the Moyock Regional Wastewater Treatment Plant.
- · Discussion of County Manager Search and Recruitment.
- · Consideration of any other matters that may be considered and acted upon at a regular meeting.

Attendee Name	Title	Status	Arrived
Michael H. Payment	Chairman	Present	
Paul M. Beaumont	Vice Chairman	Present	
J. Owen Etheridge	Commissioner	Present	
Mary "Kitty" Etheridge	Commissioner	Present	
Selina S. Jarvis	Commissioner	Present	
Kevin E. McCord	Commissioner	Present	
Bob White	Commissioner	Present	

Chairman Payment called the meeting to order.

### A) Approval of Agenda

Commissioner White moved for approval of the agenda. Commissioner Jarvis seconded the motion. The motion carried, 7-0, and the agenda was approved.

RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS]

MOVER: Bob White, Commissioner

SECONDER: Selina S. Jarvis, Commissioner

AYES: Michael H. Payment, Chairman, Paul M. Beaumont, Vice Chairman, J. Owen

Etheridge, Commissioner, Mary "Kitty" Etheridge, Commissioner, Selina S. Jarvis, Commissioner, Kevin E. McCord, Commissioner, Bob White, Commissioner

## **NEW BUSINESS**

## A. Discussion of the Moyock Regional Wastewater Treatment Plant

The Board of Commissioners met at 5:00 PM in the Board Meeting Room of the Historic Courthouse to discuss the County's options for operation of the Moyock Regional Wastewater Treatment Plant. County Manager/County Attorney, Ike McRee, recalled previous work session discussion when the Board was asked to consider whether the County will continue to operate the wastewater plant or sell to a private operator. The Board expressed concerns regarding cost and projected timeline. A history of challenges with the design and operation of the plant were discussed, as were concerns with impacts on customer rates, commercial development, and residential growth.

Mr. McRee discussed options that may be available such as selling the wastewater treatment plant, public private partnership or construction of the new facility. He presented an email from the county's engineers Hazen & Sawyer regarding encounters with utility system delivery methods by the private sector, a case study and draft asset sale and purchase agreement from Carteret County's recent and ongoing process to sell its water system and information regarding the requirements of public-private partnerships.

Chairman Payment expressed concern for prior commitments to individuals and what recourse may take place in the process to sell. Mr. McRee informed the Board that the county is unable to add additional flow to the current plant at this time and any prior commitments cannot be resolved immediately. The state has disallowed any further flow into the plant until it is reconstructed. Mr. McRee stated that in his opinion there is no legal recourse against the county because the statutory provision states the county is not liable for failure.

Commissioners Jarvis, expressed concerns for Currituck County citizens and what happens when the private sector does not maintain the system properly and the county is unable to assist. Commissioner Mary Etheridge echoed Commissioner Jarvis's concerns. Larry Lombardi, Economic Development Director, stated a sale would affect the County's ability to provide incentives to potential businesses.

Commissioner McCord maintained his position to sell the wastewater plant.

Chairman Payment called a recess at 6:00PM. The Board reconvened at 6:06PM.

During discussion, the Board's consensus was to move to 300,000 gallon capacity and the Board directed staff to collect more data regarding the process of public private partnerships before moving forward with the county funding the Moyock Regional Wastewater Plant project or sell of system. The Board will hold a Work Session for further discussion on December 20, 2021 at the regular scheduled Board meeting.

RESULT: CONTINUED TO FUTURE MEETING Next: 12/20/2021 6:00 PM

### B. Discussion of County Manager Search and Recruitment

Vice-Chairman Beaumont discussed the five proposals received for executive search services for the position of County Manager.

Mr. Beaumont motioned to award the contract to Development and Associates with a not to exceed amount of \$25,000.00. Commissioner White seconded the motion. The motion carried 7-0.

		Debit	Credit
		Decrease Revenue or	Increase Revenue or
Account Number	Account Description	Increase Expense	Decrease Expense
10420-561000	Professional Services	25,000	
10320-411000	Article 39 Sales Tax - Local Option		25,000
		\$ 25,000	\$ 25,000
Explanation:	Governing Body (10420) - Increase appropriati a firm to search for a County Manager.	ions to provide funding for profession	nal services to contract with
Net Budget Effe	ct: Operating Fund (10) - Increased by \$25,00	00.	

RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS]

MOVER: Paul M. Beaumont, Vice Chairman

**SECONDER:** Bob White, Commissioner

AYES: Michael H. Payment, Chairman, Paul M. Beaumont, Vice Chairman, J. Owen

Etheridge, Commissioner, Mary "Kitty" Etheridge, Commissioner, Selina S.

Jarvis, Commissioner, Kevin E. McCord, Commissioner, Bob White,

Commissioner

## C) Consent Agenda

County Manager/County Attorney Ike McRee recommended the consent agenda items move to the next meeting on December 6, 2021.

1. Consideration of Lease Agreement with the North Carolina Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services for Forest Service Office.

### **ADJOURN**

The Board had no further business. Commissioner Mary Etheridge moved to adjourn. The motion was seconded by Commissioner White. The motion carried, 7-0, and the meeting of the Board of Commissioners concluded at 6:35 PM.

### **Motion to Adjourn Meeting**

RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS]

MOVER: Mary "Kitty" Etheridge, Commissioner

**SECONDER:** Bob White, Commissioner

AYES: Michael H. Payment, Chairman, Paul M. Beaumont, Vice Chairman, J. Owen

Etheridge, Commissioner, Mary "Kitty" Etheridge, Commissioner, Selina S. Jarvis,

Commissioner, Kevin E. McCord, Commissioner, Bob White, Commissioner



# Currituck County Agenda Item Summary Sheet

Agenda ID Number - (ID # 3282)

Agenda Item Title: Discussion of the Moyock Regional Wastewater Treatment Plant

**Submitted By:** Samantha Evans – County Manager

Presenter of Item:

**Board Action:** Discussion

**Brief Description of Agenda Item:** 

Is this item regulated by plan, regulation or statute?

**Manager Recommendation:** 



# Currituck County Agenda Item Summary Sheet

Agenda ID Number - (ID # 3283)

Agenda Item Title: Discussion of County Manager Search and Recruitment

**Submitted By:** Samantha Evans – County Manager

Presenter of Item:

**Board Action:** Discussion

**Brief Description of Agenda Item:** 

Is this item regulated by plan, regulation or statute?

**Manager Recommendation:** 



# Currituck County Agenda Item Summary Sheet

Agenda ID Number - (ID # 3281)

**Agenda Item Title:** Consideration of Lease Agreement with the North Carolina Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services for Forest Service Office.

**Submitted By:** Samantha Evans – County Manager

Presenter of Item:

**Board Action:** Action

**Brief Description of Agenda Item:** 

Is this item regulated by plan, regulation or statute?

**Manager Recommendation:** 

### STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA

#### LEASE AGREEMENT

#### COUNTY OF CURRITUCK

THIS LEASE AGREEMENT (hereinafter "Lease"), made and entered into as of the last date set forth in the notary acknowledgements below by and between, **Currituck County**, hereinafter designated as Lessor, and the **STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA** through the North Carolina Department of Agriculture & Consumer Services hereinafter designated as Lessee;

## WITNESSETH:

THAT WHEREAS, authority to approve and execute this lease agreement was delegated to the Department of Administration by resolution adopted by the Governor and Council of State on the 1st day of September, 1981; and as amended on September 8, 1999 and December 7<sup>th</sup>, 1999, and April 1, 2003

WHEREAS, the Department of Administration has delegated to the Department of Agriculture the authority to execute this lease agreement by a memorandum dated the 26th day of March, 1982; and as amended on the 26th day of December, 2016: and

WHEREAS, the parties hereto have mutually agreed to the terms of this lease agreement as hereinafter set out,

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the rental hereinafter agreed to be paid and the terms and conditions hereinafter set forth, Lessor does hereby let and lease unto Lessee and Lessee hereby takes and leases from Lessor for and during the period of time and subject to the terms and conditions hereinafter set out certain space in the, County of Currituck, North Carolina, more particularly described as follows:

Being approximately 400 net square feet of office space and 129 SF of Storage Space located Freestanding County Owned Building Located at 125 College Way, Room 106, Barco, NC 27917 (Attached Exhibit A), Currituck County, North Carolina and further described as follows:

Department of Agiculture and Consumer Services (Forest Service)

THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THIS LEASE AGREEMENT ARE AS FOLLOWS:

- 1. The term of this lease shall be for a period of **Three (3) years**, commencing on the 1<sup>st</sup> day of **December**, 2021, or as soon thereafter as the leased premises are ceded to the Lessee and terminating on the 30th day of November, 2024.
- 2. During the term of the lease, the Lessee shall pay to the Lessor as rental for said premises the sum of **\$ One** Dollar per annum, which sum shall be paid for the term of the lease. The Lessee agrees to pay the aforesaid rental to Lessor at the address specified, or, to such other address as the Lessor may designate by a notice in writing at least fifteen (15) days prior to the due date.

- 3. Lessor agrees to furnish to the Lessee, as a part of the consideration for this lease, the following services and utilities to the satisfaction of the Lessee.
  - a. Heating facilities, air conditioning facilities, adequate electrical facilities, adequate lighting fixtures and sockets, hot and cold water facilities, and adequate toilet facilities.
  - b. Lessor to provide required fire extinguishers and servicing, pest control, and outside trash disposal including provisions for the handling of recyclable items such as aluminum cans, cardboard and paper. Maintenance of lawns, parking areas (including snow removal) and common areas is required.
  - c. Parking
  - d. The Lessor covenants that the leased premises are generally accessible to persons with disabilities. This shall include access into the premises from the parking areas (where applicable), into the premises via any common areas of the building and access to an accessible restroom.
  - e. All stormwater fees.
  - f. Any fire or safety inspection fees.
  - g. Lessor furnishes telephone, NCFS pays electrical utilities.
  - h. All land transfer tax/fees imposed by the County or City in which the space is located.
  - The number of keys to be provided to Lessee for each lockset shall be reasonably determined by Lessee prior to occupancy and said keys shall be furnished by Lessor to Lessee at no cost to Lessee.
  - j. Maintenance of lawns, sidewalks, paved areas (this includes snow and debris removal), disposal of trash and common areas are required.
  - k. All other terms and conditions of the signed "Proposal to Lease to the State of North Carolina" Form PO-28 and "Specifications for Non-advertised Lease."
- 4. During the lease term, the Lessor shall keep the leased premises in good repair and tenantable condition, to the end that all facilities are kept in an operative condition. Maintenance shall include, but is not limited to furnishing and replacing electrical light fixture ballasts, air conditioning and ventilating equipment filter pads, if applicable, and broken glass. In case Lessor shall, after notice in writing from the Lessee in regard to a specified condition, fail, refuse, or neglect to correct said condition, or in the event of an emergency constituting a hazard to the health or safety of the Lessee's employees, property, or invitees, it shall then be lawful for the Lessee in addition to any other remedy the Lessee may have, to make such repair at its own cost and to deduct the amount thereof from the rent that may then be thereafter become due hereunder. The Lessor reserves the right to enter and inspect the leased premises, at reasonable times, and to make necessary repairs to the premises.

- 5. It is understood and agreed that Lessor shall, at the beginning of said lease term as hereinabove set forth, have the leased premises in a condition satisfactory to Lessee, including repairs, painting, partitioning, remodeling, plumbing and electrical wiring suitable for the purposes for which the leased premises will be used by Lessee.
- 6. The Lessee shall have the right during the existence of this lease, with the Lessor's prior consent, to make alterations, attach fixtures and equipment, and erect additions, structures or signs in or upon the leased premises. Such fixtures, additions, structures or signs so placed in or upon or attached to the leased premises under this lease or any prior lease of which this lease is an extension or renewal shall be and remain the property of the Lessee and may be removed therefrom by the Lessee prior to the termination of this lease or any renewal or extension thereof, or within a reasonable time thereafter. The Lessee shall have no duty to remove any improvement or fixture placed by it on the premises or to restore any portion of the premises altered by it. In the event Lessee elects to remove his improvements or fixtures and such removal causes damage or injury to the demised premises, Lessee will repair only to the extent of any such damage or injury.
- 7. If the said premises be destroyed by fire or other casualty without fault of the Lessee, this lease shall immediately terminate and the rent shall be apportioned to the time of the damage. In case of partial destruction or damage by fire or other casualty without fault of the Lessee, so as to render the premises untenantable in whole or in part, there shall be an apportionment of the rent until the damage has been repaired. During such period of repair, Lessee shall have the right to obtain similar office space at the expense of Lessee or the Lessee may terminate the lease by giving fifteen (15) days written notice to the Lessor.
- 8. Lessor shall be liable to Lessee for any loss or damages suffered by Lessee which are a direct result of the failure of Lessor to perform an act required by this lease, and provided that Lessor could reasonably have complied with said requirement.
- 9. Upon termination of this lease, the Lessee will peaceably surrender the leased premises in as good order and condition as when received, reasonable use and wear and damage by fire, war, riots, insurrection, public calamity, by the elements, by act of God, or by circumstances over which Lessee had no control or for which Lessor is responsible pursuant to this lease, excepted.
- 10. The Lessor agrees that the Lessee, upon keeping and performing the covenants and agreements herein contained, shall at all times during the existence of this lease peaceably and quietly have, hold, and enjoy the leased premises free from the adverse claims of any person.
- 11. The failure of either party to insist in any instance upon strict performance of any of the terms and conditions herein set forth shall not be construed as a waiver of the same in any other instance. No modification of any provision hereof and no cancellation or surrender thereof shall be valid unless in writing and signed and agreed to by both parties.
- 12. Any hold over after the expiration of the said term or any extension thereof, shall be construed to be a tenancy from month to month, and shall otherwise be on the terms and conditions herein specified, so far as applicable; however, either party shall give not less than sixty (60) days written notice to terminate the tenancy.
- 13. The parties to this lease agree and understand that the continuation of this lease agreement for the term period set forth herein, or any extension or renewal thereof, is dependent upon and subject to the appropriation, allocation or availability of funds for this purpose to the agency of the Lessee responsible for payment of said rental. The parties to this lease also

agree that in the event the agency of the Lessee or that body responsible for the appropriations of said funds, in its sole discretion, determines, in view of its total local office operations that available funding for the payment of rents are insufficient to continue the operation of its local offices on the premise leased herein, it may choose to terminate the lease agreement set forth herein by giving Lessor written notice of said termination, and the lease agreement shall terminate immediately without any further liability to Lessee.

- 14. All notices herein provided to be given, or which may be given by either party to the other, shall be deemed to have been fully given when made in writing and deposited in the United States mail, certified and postage prepaid and addressed as follows: To the Lessor at 153 Courthouse Road, Suite 204, Currituck, NC 27929, the Lessee at North Carolina Department of Agriculture & Consumer Services Attn: Real Property Agent, 1001 Mail Service Center, Raleigh, North Carolina 27699-1001. Nothing herein contained shall preclude the giving of such notice by personal service. The address to which notices shall be mailed as aforesaid to either party may be changed by written notice.
- 15. Lessee shall not assign this lease or sublet any part of the Leased Premises without the written consent of the Lessor.
- 16. Lessor agrees that the Lessee's decision to self insure satisfies all insurance requirements of this lease applicable to the Lessee.
- 17. The State of North Carolina is an immune sovereign and is not ordinarily subject to suit. However, the State has enacted the North Carolina Tort Claims Act, pursuant to which the State may be liable for the torts of its officers and employees, within the terms of the Act. Accordingly, the Lessee will be primarily liable for any claims within the coverage of the Tort Claims Act.
- 18. Although Lessor is under no obligation to provide internet service to Lessee pursuant to this lease, if Lessor does make internet service available to Lessee, Lessee shall require its employees and agents who use said service to abide by Currituck County's internet use policies.
- 19. N.C.G.S. § 133-32 and Executive Order 24 prohibit the offer to, or acceptance by, any State Employee of any gift from anyone with a contract with the State, or from any person seeking to do business with the State. By execution of any response in this procurement, you attest, for your entire organization and its employees or agents, that you are not aware that any such gift has been offered, accepted, or promised by any employees of your organization.

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, this lease has been executed by the parties hereto, in duplicate originals, as of the date first above written.

LESSEE:	
STATE OF NO	RTH CAROLINA
Director	A. Meier  CS Property & Construction Division
STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA	
COUNTY OF:	
State aforesaid, do hereby certify that <b>Andrew</b> acknowledged the due execution by him of the	, a Notary Public in and for the County and w A. Meier personally came before me this day and e foregoing instrument as Director of Property and Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services, and for the purposes therein expressed.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have here day of, 20	eunto set my hand and Notarial Seal this the
$\overline{\Lambda}$	Notary Public
F	Printed Name:
My Commission expires	<u></u>

LESS	SOR:
Curri	tuck County
Rv	
Бу	Signature
-	Print Name and Title
STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA	
COUNTY OF	
I,aforesaid, do hereby certify thatand acknowledge the due execution	, a Notary Public in and for the County and State, personally came before me this day n of the foregoing instrument.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF,day of	I have hereunto set my hand and Notarial Seal this the, 20
	Notary Public
	Printed Name:
My Commission expires	

	ON IT DEEMS V	WARRANTED. I	FAXED OR E-MAIL TO THE STATE O	ED PROPO	SALS ARE NOT	<b>ACCEPTABLE</b>	
1. NAME OF LESSO			TO THE STATE OF		ESSOR'S AGENT		ıger
INDICATE EACH LE ☐ C. CORPORATI	ON 🛛 D. GOV	'ERNMENTAL [	E. NON-PROFIT				
BUSINESSES G		TAX I.D	). #	MAII	INC ADDRESS.		
MAILING ADDRESS: 153 Courthouse Road CITY: Currituck ZIP: 27929				CITY	ING ADDRESS:	ZIP:	
PHONE#: 252-232-2		FAX#:			NE#: 252-232-03		<#:
E-MAIL: sandee.salir				E-M			
3. SPACE LOCATIO							
STREET ADDRESS 125 College Way	g., 125 College		, Barco, NC 27917 CITY Barco	COL Curri	NTY		CODE
4. ATTACH FLOOR	PLAN TO SCA					218	717
5. GROSS SQUARE NET USAGE COMP	FOOTAGE BE		OFFICE		B. WAREHOUSE C. OTHER 129		
6. All proposals mus (PO-27)	t be submitted o	on the basis of ne	et square footage as	defined on	reverse side of th	is sheet and in	Specifications
A. DESIRED PROP	OSAL (See PO-	27 Items VI and	XII-A)				
	TOTAL						REQUIRED
TYPE OF SPACE	NET SQ. FT.	ANNUAL RENTAL	ANNUAL REN PER SQ. FT.	T UTIL		WATER / SEWER	PARKING SPACES
OFFICE	400						
WAREHOUSE OTHER	129						<del> </del>
TOTALS	529	1.00		XXX	x xxxx	XXXX	XXXX
Lessor will provide ( PO-27 Item VI - Park	) employe	e parking spaces	in above proposal			State. (See exp	lanation in
Comments:	9/						
	POSERS IN CA	ALCULATING N	ET SQUARE FOOT	AGF WILL	REDUCE THE AL	NNUAI RENTA	I WITHOUT
			ED RATE PER SQ				
B. OPTIONAL ALTE	RNATE PROP	OSAL NO. 1 (See	PO-27 ITEMS VI	AND XII-B)			
			UDINING UTILITIE		JANITORIAL SEF	RVICES)	
	TOTAL	Т				T	
	TOTAL NET SQ.	ANNUAL	ANNUAL RENT	UTILITIES	JANITOR.	WATER /	
TYPE OF SPACE	FT.	RENTAL	PER SQ. FT.	O I I E I I I E	SERVICES	SEWER	
OFFICE							
WAREHOUSE							
OTHER TOTALS				XXXX	XXXX	XXXX	
Lessor will provide (	) clientele	parking spaces a	and ( ) employ	ee parking s	-	****	
Loose Will provide (	) onomore	parking opacoo c	and ( ) omploy	oo panang t	pacoc		
Comments:							
7. LEASE TERM:	_ <del></del>		BEGINNING DATE		2021		
8. RENEWAL OPTION	ONS, IF ANY: I	ERMS AND CO	NDITIONS: every 3	years			
* MAXII	MUM OF 3 YEA	RS TO INCLUD	E TERM AND OPT	ONS*			
NOTE: RATES THA ARE NOT ACCEPTA						PPED CPI INCF	REASES ETC.,
ARE NOT ACCEPTA	ABLE DONING I	LITTICK THE IIVI	TIAL TERM OR AN	TALINEVIA	L FLNIOD(3)		
The State of North ( construction. The p waste paper and ca	proposed build						
THE PROPOSED BU		BE COMPLETE	I Y FREE OF ANY		IS ASDESTOS		cs, aluminum,
Is the proposed build asbestos?	UT THE STATE			HAZARDO	JS ASBESTOS	OR HAZARDOU	
aspesius:		'S TENANCY.	YES 🗆	HAZARDO	NO 🗆	OR HAZARDOU	
Is the proposed build paint?	ling free of haza	rdous	_	HAZARDO		DR HAZARDOU	
Is the proposed build	ling free of haza	rdous	YES 🗆	DIVI	NO 🗆	DR HAZARDOU	

THE STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA SHALL NOT BE RESPONSIBLE FOR ANY EXPENSES INCURRED BY THE PROPOSER IN

2.C.1.b

LESSOR:
ALL LEASES MUST HAVE ORIGINAL SIGNATURES OF LESSOR
9. ADDITIONAL INFORMATION
10. Does this space comply with local and State Building safety and zoning codes specifically including OSHA provisions for the handicapped and applicable sections of the State Building Code Volumes I-V?
☐ YES ☐ NO ☐ PARTIALLY
EXPLAIN IF OTHER THAN "YES" IS CHECKED ABOVE:
11. This proposal is made in compliance with the specifications furnished by the Department of I realize that the State reserves the right to reject this proposal for any reason it deems warranted. This proposal is good until I ACKNOWLEDGE AND FURTHER AFFIRM THAT I am aware of and familiar with the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 United States Code, Section 12101 et seq.) and if the above firm is awarded the contract, it will comply with the provisions of said Act.
I am aware that annual per square foot rental rate(s) which include indeterminable percentage increase(s) such as uncapped Consumer Price Index increases etc., are not acceptable during either the initial term or any renewal period(s):
***(HUB) HISTORICALLY UNDERUTILIZED BUSINESSES (HUB) CONSIST OF MINORITY, WOMEN AND DISABLED BUSINESS FIRMS THAT ARE AT LEAST FIFTY-ONE PERCENT OWNED AND OPERATED BY AN INDIVIDUAL(S) OF THE AFOREMENTIONED CATEGORIES. ALSO INCLUDED IN THIS CATEGORY ARE DISABLED BUSINESS ENTERPRISES AND NON-PROFIT WORK CENTERS FOR THE BLIND AND SEVERELY DISABLED.
N.C.G.S. § 133-32 and Executive Order 24 prohibit the offer to, or acceptance by, any State Employee of any gift from anyone with a contract with the State, or from any person seeking to do business with the State. By execution of this proposal, you attest, for your entire organization and its employees or agents, that you are not aware that any such gift has been offered, accepted or promised by any employees of your organization.
Printed Name of Lessor
Signature of Lessor Date
MAILING / DELIVERY INSTRUCTIONS
Contact: Email:
Department/Division: NC Department of Agriculture & Consumer Services,
Mailing Address: NCD&CS, Property & Construction Division, 1001 Mail Service Center, Raleigh, North Carolina 27699-1001
ENVELOPE SHOULD BE MARKED:
(a) Lease proposal Enclosed (b) Name of State Agency involved.
NOTE: Net square footage is a term meaning the area to be leased for occupancy by State Personnel and/or equipment. To determine net square footage:  1. Compute the inside area of the space by measuring from the normal inside finish of exterior walls or the roomside finish of fixed corridor and shaft walls, or the center of tenant separating partitions.
2. Deduct from the Inside area the following:  *a. Toilets and lounges  *b. Entrance and elevator lobbies  *c. Corridors  d. Stairwells  e. Elevators and escalator shafts  f. Building equipment and service areas  g. Stacks, shafts, and interior columns  h. Other space not usable for State purposes
2. Deduct from the Inside area the following:  *a. Toilets and lounges  *b. Entrance and elevator lobbies  *c. Corridors  d. Stairwells  e. Elevators and escalator shafts  f. Building equipment and service areas  g. Stacks, shafts, and interior columns  h. Other space not usable for State purposes  *Deduct if space is not for exclusive use by the State. Multiple State leases require a, b, and c to be deducted. The State Property Office may make adjustments for areas deemed excessive for State use.
2. Deduct from the Inside area the following:  *a. Toilets and lounges  *b. Entrance and elevator lobbies  *c. Corridors  d. Stairwells  e. Elevators and escalator shafts  f. Building equipment and service areas  g. Stacks, shafts, and interior columns  h. Other space not usable for State purposes  *Deduct if space is not for exclusive use by the State. Multiple State leases require a, b, and c to be deducted. The State Property Office may make adjustments for areas deemed excessive for State use.  DEPARTMENT:  DIVISION:
2. Deduct from the Inside area the following:  *a. Toilets and lounges  *b. Entrance and elevator lobbies  *c. Corridors  d. Stairwells  e. Elevators and escalator shafts  f. Building equipment and service areas  g. Stacks, shafts, and interior columns  h. Other space not usable for State purposes  *Deduct if space is not for exclusive use by the State. Multiple State leases require a, b, and c to be deducted. The State Property Office may make adjustments for areas deemed excessive for State use.  DEPARTMENT:  DIVISION:  CITY:  SQUARE FEET: AGENT:
2. Deduct from the Inside area the following:  *a. Toilets and lounges  *b. Entrance and elevator lobbies  *c. Corridors  d. Stairwells  e. Elevators and escalator shafts  f. Building equipment and service areas  g. Stacks, shafts, and interior columns  h. Other space not usable for State purposes  *Deduct if space is not for exclusive use by the State. Multiple State leases require a, b, and c to be deducted. The State Property Office may make adjustments for areas deemed excessive for State use.  DEPARTMENT:  DIVISION: